
 
 
 

April 28, 2025 Regular Board Meeting – 6:30 p.m. 
 
 

 

 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
The following order of business may be changed by majority vote of the Board at any meeting.     

 

 
Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices    ⚫    24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, Michigan 48036 

 
 
 

   * Indicates Board Action Needed   ** Indicates Roll Call Vote Needed 

A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call 

B. *Approval of Agenda for the April 28, 2025 Regular Board Meeting 

C. Presentations 
1. State Wrestler Recognition 
2. SkillsUSA State Conference Qualifiers 
3. Secondary Science Olympiad State Qualifiers 
4. L’Anse Creuse Teachers of Year 

****************************************BREAK**************************************** 
D. Hearing of School District Patrons 

Please note: The Board will provide 30 minutes for public comment and speakers will be asked to limit their comments to 5 minutes. If you 
did not have a chance to speak, the Board will provide additional time at the end of the meeting for public comment. 
 

E. Superintendent’s Report 
1. District Update 

F. ** Consent Agenda 
Please note: Unless removed from the Consent Agenda, items identified within the Consent Agenda will be acted on at one time. 

1. Budget Report 
2. Overtime Report 
3. Payment Registers 
4. Purchases Bond 
5. Purchases 
6. Quarterly Budget Update 
7. Summary of Investments 
8. Summary of Wire Transfers 
9. Accounts Payable Check Register Approval Reminder 
10. Employment Recommendations 
11. Student Travel Requests 
12. Board Minutes: 

a. March 31, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes 

G. Technology 
1. *Technology Firewall Support Recommendation 

H. Operations 
1. *Abatement Associated with Yacks Flooring Project 

I. Other Matters 
1. *Bond Program Project Series Transfer 
2. Letter to Prosecutor Update 
3. Legislative Update 

J. Hearing of School District Patrons Follow-up 

K. **Closed Session 

1. Motion to enter closed session under section 8(1)(h) of the Michigan Open Meetings Act to review 
two attorney-client privileged materials that are exempt from disclosure under the Michigan 
Freedom of Information Act and pursuant to Section 8(1)(c) of the Open Meetings Act for strategy 
and negotiation sessions connected with the negotiation of a collective bargaining agreement. 

L. Board Member Comment 

M. *Adjournment 



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT 

  

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE  

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da VIa Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 
 

F.1. 

 
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA  
 
Board Meeting: April 28, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Budget Report 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
This report provides the Board with a monthly expenditure overview by fund for the 
2024-2025 fiscal year, showing the original total budgeted expenditures, actual 
expenditures month-to-date, year-to-date encumbrances, and the remaining balance in 
each category as of the current month. 
 
 
 
Current Status: 
Attached is the Budget Report as of February 28, 2025. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends that 
the Board motion to approve the budget report as presented.  
 
 
KK/jh 
 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


 4/04/25   8.45.57                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  02/28   FISCAL PERIOD 08   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         1

AMEND MAR         ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  4/04/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

11 GENERAL FUND

 111 Elementary Instruction                  28,904,321.00    2,752,454.53   15,725,167.55    8,375,516.43    4,803,637.02   16.61 %
 112 Middle/Jr. High                         14,850,711.00    1,337,008.20    8,198,006.50    4,233,253.92    2,419,450.58   16.29 %
 113 High School                             21,864,196.00    1,959,475.07   11,740,411.29    6,463,799.56    3,659,985.15   16.73 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                    247,829.00             .00      104,837.21             .00      142,991.79   57.69 %
 122 Special Education                       10,672,233.00      922,074.50    5,815,213.23    2,768,491.68    2,088,528.09   19.56 %
 125 Compensatory Education                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 127 Career & Tech Education                  2,820,615.00      204,519.58    1,480,253.93      693,147.88      647,213.19   22.94 %
 211 Truancy/Absenteeism Serv                   296,324.00       29,993.41      182,895.55          900.00      112,528.45   37.97 %
 212 Guidance Services                        2,213,521.00      227,857.76    1,210,123.86      614,607.88      388,789.26   17.56 %
 213 Health Services                            377,731.00       43,518.76      228,571.16       55,390.93       93,768.91   24.82 %
 214 Psychological Services                     956,978.00       72,050.47      491,284.92      285,616.38      180,076.70   18.81 %
 215 Speech/Audiology Services                1,649,862.00      129,240.98      864,775.27      535,338.01      249,748.72   15.13 %
 216 Social Work Services                     1,578,709.00      124,652.26      786,551.60      453,862.25      338,295.15   21.42 %
 218 Teacher Consultant                         489,315.00       37,570.73      250,150.15      151,463.15       87,701.70   17.92 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                 1,317,660.00      235,726.33      789,223.29       35,329.82      493,106.89   37.42 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                    1,483,707.00      128,963.19      685,788.64      255,304.87      542,613.49   36.57 %
 222 Educational Media Service                1,007,693.00      105,057.71      590,836.76       40,710.38      376,145.86   37.32 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                  1,568,300.00      115,652.97    1,022,860.21      287,364.88      258,074.91   16.45 %
 229 Other Instr Staff Srvices                  123,352.00        9,001.39       80,174.60       20,973.66       22,203.74   18.00 %
 231 Board of Education                         342,140.00       10,459.13-     215,234.16        6,553.00      120,352.84   35.17 %
 232 Executive Admin                          1,142,004.00       66,178.76      779,647.47      218,745.17      143,611.36   12.57 %
 241 Office of Principal                      9,132,819.00      821,432.53    5,512,896.50    1,682,270.93    1,937,651.57   21.21 %
 252 Fiscal Services                          1,671,261.00      107,035.35    1,181,548.75      256,605.21      233,107.04   13.94 %
 257 Internal Services                            3,000.00        2,942.97        4,337.26             .00        1,337.26-  44.57-%
 259 Other Business Services                     62,200.00        1,893.80       13,176.41             .00       49,023.59   78.81 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                 12,320,718.00    1,033,942.24    7,542,193.61      406,424.83    4,372,099.56   35.48 %
 266 Security Services                          310,938.00       29,648.58      160,695.18       61,895.99       88,346.83   28.41 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                     6,418,565.00      559,765.31    3,691,959.69      392,454.31    2,334,151.00   36.36 %
 282 Communication Services                     136,943.00       14,159.30       84,780.65       28,952.74       23,209.61   16.94 %
 283 Staff Services                           1,793,464.00      137,047.48    1,090,093.16      145,740.95      557,629.89   31.09 %
 284 Support Services Tech                    2,197,669.00      101,209.58    1,356,455.20      303,440.47      537,773.33   24.47 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                           562,048.00       28,383.74      442,187.20       25,883.70       93,977.10   16.72 %
 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

11 GENERAL FUND                    * TOTAL  128,516,826.00   11,327,998.35   72,322,330.96   28,800,038.98   27,394,456.06   21.31 %

12 ATHLETIC FUND

 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 266 Security Services                           10,000.00             .00          787.98             .00        9,212.02   92.12 %
 293 Athletic Activities                      2,714,640.00      170,065.43-   1,379,794.91      102,803.90    1,232,041.19   45.38 %

12 ATHLETIC FUND                   * TOTAL    2,724,640.00      170,065.43-   1,380,582.89      102,803.90    1,241,253.21   45.55 %

14 STATE GRANT FUND

 111 Elementary Instruction                     970,589.00       76,244.31      374,364.17      221,265.41      374,959.42   38.63 %
 112 Middle/Jr. High                             23,634.00             .00        2,432.22             .00       21,201.78   89.70 %



 4/04/25   8.45.57                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  02/28   FISCAL PERIOD 08   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         2

AMEND MAR         ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  4/04/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 113 High School                                  9,598.00             .00        6,979.53             .00        2,618.47   27.28 %
 118 Pre-school                               1,638,636.00      100,036.03      684,559.78        2,727.50      951,348.72   58.05 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                     31,118.00             .00             .00             .00       31,118.00  100.00 %
 125 Compensatory Education                   4,987,628.00      315,796.80    2,160,610.75      926,017.56    1,900,999.69   38.11 %
 127 Career & Tech Education                     83,100.00             .00             .00             .00       83,100.00  100.00 %
 131 Adult/Cont Ed Basic                        206,897.00       15,528.61      105,121.93       36,673.95       65,101.12   31.46 %
 132 Adult/Cont Ed Secondary                     16,021.00          444.85       16,892.87             .00          871.87-   5.44-%
 212 Guidance Services                        1,103,632.00       81,031.94      649,674.39      337,415.08      116,542.53   10.55 %
 213 Health Services                            381,144.00       19,002.57      160,601.03      108,057.17      112,485.80   29.51 %
 216 Social Work Services                       615,948.00       51,401.75      322,804.62      194,126.71       99,016.67   16.07 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                      518,578.00       32,821.59      215,118.60      140,628.17      162,831.23   31.39 %
 222 Educational Media Service                   51,312.00        3,921.62       23,406.07       17,061.60       10,844.33   21.13 %
 225 Technology Assisted Inst                    14,946.00             .00           98.67             .00       14,847.33   99.33 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                    355,225.00       76,806.96      307,452.06       62,506.66       14,733.72-   4.14-%
 227 Academic Stu Assessment                     19,150.00        1,706.70        1,706.70       12,765.00        4,678.30   24.42 %
 249 Other School Admin                                .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 252 Fiscal Services                             24,167.00        1,557.60       13,081.30        4,264.42        6,821.28   28.22 %
 257 Internal Services                              840.00             .00             .00             .00          840.00  100.00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                     10,313.00             .00             .00             .00       10,313.00  100.00 %
 266 Security Services                          102,029.00        3,391.02       54,893.92             .00       47,135.08   46.19 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                        18,875.00             .00          100.00             .00       18,775.00   99.47 %
 281 Plan, Research & Dev                           952.00             .00             .00             .00          952.00  100.00 %
 282 Communication Services                       4,800.00          571.03          571.03             .00        4,228.97   88.10 %
 283 Staff Services                              11,098.00           65.00          747.50             .00       10,350.50   93.26 %
 284 Support Services Tech                          700.00             .00          687.00             .00           13.00    1.85 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                           104,362.00        8,067.83       59,567.98          450.00       44,344.02   42.49 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                    26,939.00          184.38        5,026.85             .00       21,912.15   81.33 %
 331 Community Activities                        10,081.00             .00        1,458.56             .00        8,622.44   85.53 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                     32,960.00       32,960.00       32,960.00             .00             .00     .00 %
 452 Site Improvement Services                   13,000.00             .00        1,953.00             .00       11,047.00   84.97 %
 453 Architectur & Eng Servs                     10,000.00          800.89          800.89             .00        9,199.11   91.99 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                    8,670.00             .00             .00             .00        8,670.00  100.00 %

14 STATE GRANT FUND                * TOTAL   11,406,942.00      822,341.48    5,203,671.42    2,063,959.23    4,139,311.35   36.28 %

15 FEDERAL GRANTS

 111 Elementary Instruction                     103,578.00       16,100.23       41,258.84             .00       62,319.16   60.16 %
 112 Middle/Jr. High                             51,220.00          748.98        5,524.80             .00       45,695.20   89.21 %
 113 High School                                       .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 118 Pre-school                                        .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                    269,656.00             .00      105,234.01             .00      164,421.99   60.97 %
 122 Special Education                        2,850,959.00      187,748.77    1,331,267.61      815,406.99      704,284.40   24.70 %
 125 Compensatory Education                   1,051,767.00       57,055.61      365,391.56      150,596.65      535,778.79   50.94 %
 127 Career & Tech Education                     64,795.00        8,158.31       51,398.94             .00       13,396.06   20.67 %
 131 Adult/Cont Ed Basic                         87,000.00        6,121.06       43,635.43       32,665.40       10,699.17   12.29 %
 132 Adult/Cont Ed Secondary                    110,602.00        8,140.14       58,530.35       36,673.95       15,397.70   13.92 %
 212 Guidance Services                           40,631.00        3,373.91       20,429.54             .00       20,201.46   49.71 %
 213 Health Services                                   .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 214 Psychological Services                      64,776.00             .00       39,776.19             .00       24,999.81   38.59 %
 215 Speech/Audiology Services                    1,150.00             .00          150.00             .00        1,000.00   86.95 %



 4/04/25   8.45.57                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  02/28   FISCAL PERIOD 08   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         3

AMEND MAR         ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  4/04/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 216 Social Work Services                       113,233.00        7,820.41       52,839.15       34,123.18       26,270.67   23.20 %
 218 Teacher Consultant                         353,589.00       28,085.02      188,923.84      119,082.84       45,582.32   12.89 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                      745,637.00       38,887.70      305,081.56      167,428.34      273,127.10   36.63 %
 222 Educational Media Service                    5,747.00             .00             .00             .00        5,747.00  100.00 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                    163,568.00       11,841.57       82,837.23       51,184.76       29,546.01   18.06 %
 227 Academic Stu Assessment                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 231 Board of Education                           2,000.00             .00             .00             .00        2,000.00  100.00 %
 232 Executive Admin                                   .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 241 Office of Principal                               .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 252 Fiscal Services                                   .00             .00             .02-            .00             .02     .00 %
 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 266 Security Services                            8,767.00        1,255.96        6,959.63             .00        1,807.37   20.61 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                        72,514.00             .00             .00             .00       72,514.00  100.00 %
 281 Plan, Research & Dev                         4,000.00             .00             .00             .00        4,000.00  100.00 %
 282 Communication Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 283 Staff Services                                 390.00             .00          390.00             .00             .00     .00 %
 284 Support Services Tech                             .00             .00      355,445.85             .00      355,445.85-    .00 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                            70,840.00             .00             .00             .00       70,840.00  100.00 %
 331 Community Activities                       161,394.00        9,205.51       36,539.24       15,053.50      109,801.26   68.03 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                      8,667.00             .00             .00             .00        8,667.00  100.00 %
 361 Welfare Activities                          17,283.00        1,428.30        7,308.65             .00        9,974.35   57.71 %
 371 Non-Public Schl Pupils                      37,219.00        1,388.50        9,383.69          672.44       27,162.87   72.98 %
 391 Other Community Services                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 411 Payments Oth K-12/In Stat                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

15 FEDERAL GRANTS                  * TOTAL    6,460,982.00      387,359.98    3,108,306.09    1,422,888.05    1,929,787.86   29.86 %

25 CAFETERIA

 252 Fiscal Services                             83,700.00             .04-            .25-            .00       83,700.25  100.00 %
 259 Other Business Services                     15,180.00       12,817.61-       9,298.98             .00        5,881.02   38.74 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                     65,942.00        2,405.91       29,810.82             .00       36,131.18   54.79 %
 291 Pupil Activities                             4,163.00             .00             .00             .00        4,163.00  100.00 %
 297 Food Services                            6,238,509.00      499,984.95    3,809,706.32       81,944.72    2,346,857.96   37.61 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                    200,000.00             .00             .00             .00      200,000.00  100.00 %

25 CAFETERIA                       * TOTAL    6,607,494.00      489,573.21    3,848,815.87       81,944.72    2,676,733.41   40.51 %

26 COMMUNITY EDUCATION FUND

 259 Other Business Services                     50,100.00        1,846.80       31,053.15             .00       19,046.85   38.01 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                      1,802.00             .00        1,092.52             .00          709.48   39.37 %
 283 Staff Services                                 300.00             .00             .00             .00          300.00  100.00 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                   319,613.00       32,438.77      252,613.47        1,190.25       65,809.28   20.59 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                    887,189.00       57,702.15      569,103.74             .00      318,085.26   35.85 %
 391 Other Community Services                   220,563.00             .00      189,176.51             .00       31,386.49   14.23 %

26 COMMUNITY EDUCATION FUND        * TOTAL    1,479,567.00       91,987.72    1,043,039.39        1,190.25      435,337.36   29.42 %



 4/04/25   8.45.57                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  02/28   FISCAL PERIOD 08   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         4

AMEND MAR         ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  4/04/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

27 PRESCHOOL FUND

 118 Pre-school                                 437,402.00       47,397.46      302,177.69             .00      135,224.31   30.91 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                     75,831.00        7,216.45       59,606.49          953.70       15,270.81   20.13 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                     5,700.00           93.14          992.10             .00        4,707.90   82.59 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                    568,498.00       42,934.60      378,617.53       37,729.23      152,151.24   26.76 %

27 PRESCHOOL FUND                  * TOTAL    1,087,431.00       97,641.65      741,393.81       38,682.93      307,354.26   28.26 %

29 STUDENT/SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUNDS

 296 Oth Stu/Schl Activity Exp                         .00             .00        5,700.00             .00        5,700.00-    .00 %

29 STUDENT/SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUNDS   * TOTAL             .00             .00        5,700.00             .00        5,700.00-    .00 %

31 2025 SCHOOL BOND DEBT RETIREME

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

31 2025 SCHOOL BOND DEBT RETIREME  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

34 2015 SWAPTION (FORMERLY 2008 S

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 639 fund modification                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

34 2015 SWAPTION (FORMERLY 2008 S  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

35 2021 REFUNDER

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00    1,164,920.77             .00    1,164,920.77-    .00 %

35 2021 REFUNDER                   * TOTAL             .00             .00    1,164,920.77             .00    1,164,920.77-    .00 %

37 2015 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00        8,864.00      425,048.69             .00      425,048.69-    .00 %

37 2015 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00        8,864.00      425,048.69             .00      425,048.69-    .00 %

39 2023 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00          350.00      927,225.00             .00      927,225.00-    .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00        1,000.00        1,000.00             .00        1,000.00-    .00 %

39 2023 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00        1,350.00      928,225.00             .00      928,225.00-    .00 %



 4/04/25   8.45.57                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  02/28   FISCAL PERIOD 08   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         5

AMEND MAR         ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  4/04/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

41 2025 SCHOOL BOND FUND SERIES 1

 259 Other Business Services                    671,491.00      416,055.33      416,055.33             .00      255,435.67   38.04 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                     2,628,157.00             .00      551,816.00             .00    2,076,341.00   79.00 %
 452 Site Improvement Services               28,789,667.00      331,077.91    3,949,311.17      133,629.59   24,706,726.24   85.81 %
 453 Architectur & Eng Servs                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services               78,582,176.00       59,896.50    3,558,336.76-   5,421,550.00   76,718,962.76   97.62 %
 459 Othr Facilities Acq & Con                         .00        2,860.00       12,707.50             .00       12,707.50-    .00 %

41 2025 SCHOOL BOND FUND SERIES 1  * TOTAL  110,671,491.00      809,889.74    1,371,553.24    5,555,179.59  103,744,758.17   93.74 %

46 BLD & SITE 2008

 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 639 fund modification                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

46 BLD & SITE 2008                 * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

47 B & S 2010 SERIES A TAXABLE

 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 646 FUND MOD-2008 BLDG&SITE                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

47 B & S 2010 SERIES A TAXABLE     * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

62 SCHOLARSHIP FUND

 298 Oth Priv Purpose Trust Ex                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

62 SCHOLARSHIP FUND                * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

83 Compensated Absence Internal S

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

83 Compensated Absence Internal S  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

** GRAND TOTALS  268,955,373.00   13,866,940.70   91,543,588.13   38,066,687.65  139,345,097.22   51.80 %
 *BUDGET # 01 Amended March                   3/31/2025 AMEND MAR



Keith Howell 
  SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 

          F.2.  
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA 
 
Board Meeting: April 28, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Overtime Report 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
This report provides the Board with a monthly overtime variance summary for the 2024-
2025 fiscal year. It compares the current month's actual paid overtime hours with those 
of the same month in the previous fiscal year. Additionally, it presents the year-to-date 
overtime hours for the current fiscal year alongside the total overtime hours incurred 
during the 2024 fiscal year. 
 
 
Current Status: 
The report for February 28, 2025 has been reviewed by the respective administrator of 
each building/department.  
 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends that 
the Board motion to approve the Overtime Report as presented. 

 
KK/jh 
 



 February  February  Difference  FY2025  FY2024 

 2024-25  2023-24  Over (Under) 

Year-to-

Date  Total OT 

Operations & Maintenance:

Custodians 316.35         488.76         (172.41) 2,268.73      5,010.38 

Food & Nutrition 7.03 8.66 (1.63) 38.63           264.23 

Grounds 97.26           75.27           21.99 585.83         332.36 

Maintenance 49.40           45.84           3.56 273.01         339.97 

Warehouse 0.35 0.22 0.13 2.64 5.83 

Transportation - Bus Drivers 374.20         512.10         (137.90) 1,699.50      4,757.33 

Transportation - Mechanics 123.00         66.70           56.30 443.97         319.14 

Transportation - Dispatch/Secretary 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.50 

Business Office:

Payroll 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Board of Ed:

TV Coordinator 0.58 0.58

Technology

Clerical/Techs 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 0.00

Buildings:

Curriculum/Athletics/Swim Mgmt 0.00 4.05 -4.05 17.76           19.75 

Elementary Secretary 0.00 0.00 0.00 41.49           11.55 

Secondary Secretary 5.50 0.00 5.50 12.05 18.50 

Elementary Administrative Aide 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50 0.00

Programs & Other:

Aides Instructional & Band 0.47 23.46 -22.99 10.25           66.26 

Aides Noninstructional - Noon Aide 36.95           55.35           (18.40) 275.41         579.19 

Aides Noninstructional - Supervisory 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.67 

Aides Special Ed 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 21.93 

Child Care-Secretary/Teacher 0.93 0.00 0.93 16.92           1.53 

SDC/SACC 0.84 16.31           (15.47) 148.01         587.03 

 Total        1,012.86        1,296.72 (284.44)        5,836.28 12,346.15 

L’ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OVERTIME HOUR REPORT

for Fiscal Year 2024/2025



Keith Howell 
  SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

     
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  

F.3. 

  
Initiator:                        Kathy Konon, CPA 
  
Board Meeting: April 28, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Payment Registers 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
The Payment Register and Purchase Card Report for all funds are presented to the Board 
of Education each month for review as part of the Consent Agenda. Each check run for 
the month is summarized and totaled by fund, providing a clear financial overview. 
Additionally, the detailed documents include the signatures of two Board members, 
ensuring proper authorization and oversight. 
 
 
Current Status: 
The Payment Register for all funds are presented as of February 28, 2025, as follows: 

 

• February 11, 2025 

• February 19, 2025 

• February 26, 2025 

• Purchase Card Reports for January 2025 (reviewed) 
 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends that 
the Board motion to approve the Payment Registers as presented. 
 
 

KK/jh 















































































































Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

F.4. 

 
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA 
 

Board Meeting: April 28, 2025 
 

Agenda Item:  Purchases for Bond 
 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 

Background: 
 
Due to the recent passage of the 2025 School Bond Fund Series 1, several expenditures 
must be paid timely to various contractors, vendors, and bond partners. A separate 
bond fund account is required according to the bond closing documentation to process 
these bond payments.  The Board has established a policy requiring Board approval for 
purchases that exceed the state’s competitive bid threshold (currently $30,512). 
  
Given the volume of transactions and the board approval of the bid award 
recommendations, a complete check register of payments from the bond fund (Fund 41) 
will be provided each month for your reference.  Please see the attached bond check 
register. 
 
Current Status: 
Purchases as of February 28, 2025 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration is presenting 
for informational purposes only. 
 
 
KK/jh 







Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

F.5. 
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA 
 

Board Meeting: April 28, 2025 
 

Agenda Item:  Purchases 
 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 

Background: 
During normal business operations, district personnel may purchase items necessary for 
the administration of schools and administrative offices. To ensure transparency and 
oversight, the Board has established a policy requiring that all purchases exceeding the 
state’s competitive bid threshold (currently $30,512.00) from the General Fund, Internal 
Fund, Grant Fund, and Food Service Fund be reported to the Board on a monthly basis. 
 
Current Status: 
As of February 28, 2025, there are no purchases that meet the Board requirements. 
 

Fund Vendor Description Amount 
    
    
    

 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration is presenting 
for informational purposes only. 
 
 
KK/jh 



Keith Howell 
  SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

     
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

Hilary E. Dubay   Amelia A. Servial    Sharon L. Ross         Terri M. Spencer Mary L. Hilton Adam D. Lipski Shane W. Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

  

F.6. 
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA 
 
Board Meeting: April 28, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Quarterly Budget Update 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
The purpose of the Comparative Statement is to compare current year-to-date revenues 
and expenditures with those of the prior year. It also displays the current year’s Board-
approved budget alongside the year-to-date projected budget. 
 
 
Current Status: 
Please note that this report is a duplicate of the previous months within the quarter. The 
quarterly budget update as of December 31, 2024, is attached. The next update will be 
provided once of the next quarter is closed. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration is presenting 
for informational purposes only. 

 

 

 
KK/jh 
 

 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


Overview of the General Fund Comparative Statement 

As of December 31, 2024 

The attached comparative statement provides a quarterly snapshot of district resource 

expenditures, comparing actual spending to both the budgeted amounts and the expenditures 

from the prior fiscal year (FY24). 

Revenue 

Total revenue for the period ending December 31st was $52,422,886. The majority of the 

revenue is the local tax collections. Local revenue is dependent on the timing of tax collections. 

State revenue for fiscal 2025 begins in October. State revenue was affected by no foundation 

allowance increase this year along with MPSERS cost offset for UAAL. The county millage was 

broken out separately from other financing sources to distinguish this revenue. 

Expense 

The general fund expenses are compared to the prior year at this time and have changed by 

$4,692,591. Below are some of the highlights: 

* English textbook purchases for high schools and middle schools and the Math textbook

purchases for elementary.

* Teacher wage increase effective July 1 along with steps and increased retirement rate and

benefits.

* Staff that are no longer grant funded.

* Added positions for ECSE, an instructional tech coach, 3 supervisory aides in the middle

schools, 4.5 media clerks, 2.0 computer techs.

* Employee payout leaves along with compensation paid for the staff responsible for the

additional duties while a position is unfilled including cross training of new positions.

Summary 

Overall general fund expenses exceeded revenue by $2,770,963. 



DESCRIPTION 

REVENUE: 

Local 

State 

Federal 

County Millage 

Other Financing Sources 

Total Revenue 

EXPENDITURES: 

l�struction:

Basic Programs

Added Needs

Adult and Continuing Education

Support Services:

Pupil

Instructional Staff 

General Administration 

School Administration 

Business 

Operation and Maintenance 

Transportation 

Central Administration 

Other Support - Athletics 

Community Services 

Other Financing Uses 

Total Expenditures 

Revenue in excess of (less than) 

Expenditures 

L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT (CASH BASIS) 

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES BY STATE FUNCTION CODE 

Quarterly General Fund statement ending 12/31/24 

General Fund 

2nd Qtr 

Original FY 25 

BUDGET Actual Remaining 

2024/2025 12/31/2024 Balance 

$ 21,845,504 $ 20,815,840 $ (1,029,664) 

98,022,525 25,559,074 (72,463,451) 

0 0 -

5,453,374 4,994,453 (458,921) 

2,592,200 1,053,519 (1,538,682) 

$ 127,913,603 $ 52,422,886 $ (75,490,717) 

65,332,912 25,363,089 39,969,823 

13,970,621 5,255,600 8,715,021 

0 0 -

7,849,154 3,586,522 4,262,632 

4,608,384 1,919,039 2,689,345 

860,087 857,897 2,190 

8,526,842 3,995,607 4,531,235 

1,625,228 928,678 696,550 

12,197,795 5,623,479 6,574,316 

6,731,646 2,714,130 4,017,516 

4,566,918 2,408,997 2,157,921 

2,712,759 1,432,732 1,280,027 

1,890,747 1,108,079 782,668 
-

$ 130,873,093 $ 55,193,849 $ 75,679,244 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ (2,959,490) $ (2,770,963) $ 188,527 $ 

FY24 

Prior Year 

12/31/2023 

18,598,311 

26,113,607 

0 

4,693,746 

1,073,986 

50,479,650 

22,555,374 

4,935,792 

0 

2,238,675 

1,518,830 

461,880 

3,637,222 

704,004 

6,147,055 

2,961,905 

2,148,576 

2,374,800 

817,146 

50,501,258 

(21,608) 



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

F.7. 

 
 

Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA 
 
Board Meeting: April 28, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Summary of Investments 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
Part of fiscal management is to invest available cash funds in order to earn income for 
the district.  As investing does include risk, both interest rate risk and credit risk, the 
board has established a policy that a report on investments be provided on a monthly 
basis. 
 
 
Current Status: 
The report reflected in the document is for the time period as of February 28, 2025 and 
includes the investing institution, type of investment, amount invested, interest rate as 
well as which fund made the investment. 
 
 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends that 
the Board motion to approve the Summary of Investments as presented. 

  
KK/jh 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary of investments as of: February 28, 2025  

 

   

Institution Type  Amount Rate Date 

Purchased 

Due Date Fund Number 

of Days 

 

JPMorgan Chase 

 

Checking 

 

$11,118,857.73 

 

N/A 

 

Varies 

 

Immediate 

 

GF 

 

- 

        

JPMorgan Chase Checking $40,654.80 N/A Varies Immediate  IF - 

        

JPMorgan Chase 

 

Checking $23,666,404.58 N/A Varies Immediate DF - 

Fifth Third Bank Depository $2,083,489.01 N/A Varies Immediate  GF - 

        

Fifth Third Bank Depository $1,156,393.47 N/A Varies Immediate  IF - 

        

Fifth Third Bank Depository $1,800,992.47 N/A Varies Immediate  CF - 

        

MILAF 

 

MILAF 

 

Investment 

 

Investment 

$6,181,268.98 

 

$991,941.74 

N/A 

 

N/A 

N/A 

 

N/A 

Varies 

 

Varies 

GF 

 

IF 

- 

 

- 

MILF Investment $1,053,973.62 N/A N/A Varies CF - 

MILAF Investment $169,465.31 N/A N/A Varies Scholarship 

Fund 

- 

Huntington Bank Investment $109,974,227.97 N/A N/A Varies Bond - 

Calendar YTD 

Accumulative Earnings 

for all Funds 

 $60,264.93 N/A N/A Varies Interest - 

NOTE:        

State Aid Payment –  

February 20, 2025 

Deposited to JPMorgan 

Chase                                      

 $11,276,430.17  N/A    

 

B&S = Building & Site 

CF = Cafeteria Fund 

DF = Debt Fund 

GF = General Fund 

 IF = Internal Fund 

  

 

  

 

 Rates as of February 28, 2025: 
Federal Reserve  

     Non-Asset Backed     30 days       4.32 

          60 days       4.31 

     Asset Backed         30 days       4.39 

          60 days       N/A 

 

Note: N/A. indicates trade data insufficient to 

support calculation of the particular rate. 



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

    

F.8. 
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA 
  
Board Meeting: April 28, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Summary of Wire Transfers 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
In order to conduct financial management transactions, wiring money to and from the 
district’s bank accounts is part of the business office operations.  To provide oversight of 
this process a monthly report is prepared by the accountant.  The report includes the 
date of transaction, the bank accounts involved in the transactions, the reason for the 
wire transfer, the amount and the fund requesting the transfer. 
 
 
Current Status: 
The report submitted is as of February 28, 2025, and summarizes the wire transfers for 
the General, Debt, Cafeteria and Trust & Agency funds. 
 
 
 
Future Direction (Comments or Motion)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends that 
the Board motion to approve the Summary of Wire Transfers as presented.  
 
KK/jh 

 



L’ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

Summary of General, Debt, Cafeteria and Trust & Agency Funds Wire Activity 

February 1 through February 28, 2025 

1 of 1 

1 2/03/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

BMO Purchasing Card Activity through January 27th ($131,718.71) ACH GF 

2 2/05/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Wells Fargo Bank 2/07/25 Annuities Funding ($140,734.46) ACH GF 

3 2/05/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Bank of America 2/07/25 PR Direct Deposit ($1,630,062.35) Wire GF 

4 2/05/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

MSGCU 2/07/25 Net Payroll Deductions ($336,222.78) Wire GF 

5 2/18/25 Huntington 

National Bank BF
Department of 

Treasury 

Cost Issuance for 2025 School Building and Site 

Bonds Closing 

($24,200.00) ACH BF 

6 2/19/25 JPMorgan Chase 

DF 

Wells Fargo Bank 2/21/25 Annuities Funding ($141,560.49) ACH GF 

7 2/19/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

UMB Bank Trustee Fee ($350.00) Wire DF 

8 2/19/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Bank of America 2/21/25 Net Payroll Deductions ($1,688,090.21) Wire GF 

9 2/19/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

MSGCU 2/21/25 Net Payroll Deductions ($325,823.93) Wire GF 

10 02/21/25 JPMorgan Chase 

DF 

Huntington National 

Bank 

2025/26 Admin Fee for 2015 Refunding Bond ($500.00) Wire DF 



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE 

                                      
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 

 
 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Al Doss    Sharon. Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

        

          F.9. 

  
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA 
 
Board Meeting: April 28, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Accounts Payable Check Register 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
The accounts payable check listing is reviewed by members of the board of education. They may review 
the paperwork, if necessary, and each will sign the check register. 

 
 
Current Status: 
The following Board Members are assigned to approve the Accounts Payable Check Register on the 
following dates: 
 

Review Dates Approvers 

May 1 & 2, 2025 A. Doss & S. Sellers 

May 15 & 16, 2025 S. Ross & A. Lipski 

May 29 & 30, 2025 S. Hernden & S. Sellers 
 

 
*The Purchase Card Report for March 2025 will be included with the May 28, 2025 check run. 
 

 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This status is provided as a schedule reminder.   

 
KK/jh 



Keith Howell 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

Michael W. Van Camp 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

Anita Dzieszkowski 
SUPERVISOR FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6311 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Al Doss Sharon Ross John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER 

AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Initiator:  Mike Van Camp 
  
Board Meeting:  April 28, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Employment Recommendations 
  

Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 

Background:   
The attached list contains candidates who have been recommended for employment in the 
position/building that is indicated, as well as current employees who are being recommended for a 
change in some aspect of their employment status.  
 
Current Status:   
The Human Resources department has received, from the appropriate administrator, a 
recommendation for the action listed along with any required documentation. Interviews and reference 
checks, if applicable, have been completed.  The Employment Recommendations are being submitted 
for approval by the Board. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion:   
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the Employment Recommendations as 
presented. 
 
 
MV/jd 
 

 

 
 
 

F.10. 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


Employment Recommendations

April 28, 2025

Page 1

# * Name Assignment Remarks Effective Degree/Step

INSTRUCTIONAL

1 Clark, John Paul Music Education Teacher, L'Anse Creuse 

High School

Retirement (17 years, 9 

months)

6/30/2025

2 David, Jordan Italian/Health Teacher, L'Anse Creuse High 

School - North

Leave of Absence Extension 2025-2026

3 Dissette, Dawn ESL Instructor Adult Education Evening 

Teacher, DiAnne M. Pellerin Center

Replaces Elizabeth Elkins 4/1/2025 $40.00 

4 Elkins, Elizabeth ESL Instructor Adult Education Evening 

Teacher, DiAnne M. Pellerin Center

Resignation 3/20/2025

5 Knill, Rebecca School Social Worker, DiAnne M. Pellerin 

Center

Leave of Absence Extension August  thru 

December 

2025

6 Laskowski, Brian Math Teacher, L'Anse Creuse High School Resignation 6/6/2025

7 Mertz, Marianne Science/Computer Science Teacher, L'Anse 

Creuse Middle School - East

Retirement (23 years, 5 

months)

6/30/2025

8 Parmentier, Kathy Teacher, L'Anse Creuse High School - 

North

Leave of Absence Extension 2025-2026

9 Roda, Donald History/Sociology Teacher, L'Anse Creuse 

High School

Retirement (33 years, 9 

months)

6/30/2025

10 Trebilcock, Susan Elementary Principal, Higgins Elementary Retirement (33 years) 8/31/2025

1 Abelgas, Kimberly Cook/Cashier I, L'Anse Creuse Middle 

School -East

Resignation 3/20/2025

2 Anderton, Sharon Cook/Cashier I, L'Anse Creuse Middle 

School -East

Termination 4/14/2025

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL



Employment Recommendations

April 28, 2025

Page 2

3 * Batanian, Johanna Cook/Cashier I, L'Anse Creuse High School Replaces Jessica Niebauer 3/19/2025 $15.00 

4 Cain-Sayles, Alexandrea Summer Day Camp - South Assistant 

Director, South River Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $18.74 

5 Forrey, Laura Temporary Summer Enrollment Clerk, 

Harry L. Wheeler Center & Administrative 

Offices

Filled Position 7/7/2025 $18.93 

6 Fraley, Kimberly Summer Special Education Screener, Harry 

L. Wheeler Center & Administrative 

Offices

Cheryl Buzzelli 6/30/2025 $17.37 

7 Garland, DeJuan Head Football At-Will Coach, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Resignation 4/1/2025

8 Garland, DeJuan Media & Technology Clerk, L'Anse Creuse 

High School - North

Resignation 4/2/2025

9 Gillich, Rebecca 23G High Dosage Tutoring Program 

Coordinator, Harry L. Wheeler Center & 

Administrative Offices

New Position 3/3/2025 $50.00 

10 * Guinane, Devon Varsity Boys Basketball Assistant At-Will 

Supplemental Coach, L'Anse Creuse High 

School - North

Replaces Greg McBryar 11/1/2024 Flat Rate

$1,500

11 Hakim, Myndi Summer Special Education Screener, Harry 

L. Wheeler Center & Administrative 

Offices

Filled Position 6/30/2025 $17.37 

12 Hanna, Rebecca Custodian, Higgins Elementary Termination 4/4/2025

13 Henderson, Jacob Summer Day Camp - North Director, 

Carkenord Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $24.03 

14 Henry, Meghan 7th Grade Girls Basketball Coach, L'Anse 

Creuse Middle School - North

Replaces Kari McGee 1/16/2025 Per Contract 

15 Johnson, Princess Mia Freshman Girls Track At-Will Coach, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Replaces Linda Monarch 4/18/2025 Per Contract 

16 Jones, Jed Freshman Boys Basketball At-Will Coach, 

L'Anse Creuse High School - North

Resignation 4/7/2025



Employment Recommendations

April 28, 2025

Page 3

17 Kerr, Sophia 8th Grade Girls Basketball At-Will Coach, 

L'Anse Creuse Middle School - East

Replaces Denton Casier 1/5/2025 Per Contract 

18 Kociemba, Dianna Bus Driver, Larry F. Brender Support 

Services Center

Leave of Absence 4/7/2025-

6/17/2025

19 Korn, Mckenzie Fall JV Sideline Cheer At-Will Coach, L'Anse 

Creuse High School -North

Resignation 4/8/2025

20 Korn, Mckenzie Winter Competitive Cheer - Assistant 

Varsity At-Will Coach, L'Anse Creuse High 

School -North

Resignation 4/8/2025

21 Kuttner, Devon LC United Cheer Assistant At-Will 

Supplemental Coach, L'Anse Creuse 

Middle School Central & South

Resignation 4/14/2025

22 Meyer, Cheryl Summer Day Camp - South Director, South 

River Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $25.58 

23 * Montgomery, Karla Cook/Cashier I, L'Anse Creuse High School - 

North

Replaces Mary Kay Cote 3/19/2025 $15.00 

24 * Parks, Dana Cook/Cashier I, Carkenord Elementary Replaces Karen Drozdowski 3/25/2025 $15.00 

25 Rizzo, Nicholas Afternoon Custodian, L'Anse Creuse 

Middle School - East 

Termination 3/18/2025

26 * Rossi, Kacy Freshman Softball Head At-Will Coach, 

L'Anse Creuse High School - North

Replaces Michael Parent 3/31/2025 Per Contract 

27 Shekoski, Michelle Instructional Paraprofessional, Green 

Elementary

Resignation 4/4/2025

28 Stephens, Danielle Yearbook Advisor, L'Anse Creuse Middle 

School -Central

Replaces Deana Currie 2/7/2025 Per Contract 

29 * Williams, Anita GSRP Floater, L'Anse Creuse Early 

Childhood Center

Replaces Samantha Nechifor 6/16/2025 $17.48 

30 Williams, Catherine Summer Day Camp - North Assistant 

Director, Carkenord Elementary

Replaces Kayla O'Malley 6/16/2025 $17.48 

31 Wilson, Kurt Varsity Girls Golf Coach At-Will Coach, 

L'Anse Creuse High School - North

Resignation 4/10/2025



Employment Recommendations

April 28, 2025

Page 4

32 Woods, George Varsity Boys Basketball At-Will Coach, 

L'Anse Creuse High School

Resignation 4/4/2025

*New Employee to the District

Updated items are in red.

Years of service reflect LCPS service, only, and does not reflect purchased service or service in other school districts.



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
Adam Lipski Al Doss Sharon Ross John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY  TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or 
marital status in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, 
L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries 
related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT 

 
  

Lisa E. Montpas 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 
 
 

Kimberly Rawski 
DIRECTOR FOR 

SECONDARY EDUCATION 
 

Dr. Tony Sedick 
INTERIM DIRECTOR FOR 

ELEMENTARY EDUCATION 
 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300 
586.783.6312 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

 

 

  DEPARTMENT OF CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 
 
 
 

                                                   

     F.11. 
Initiator:  Lisa Montpas                      
                                  
Board Meeting: April 28, 2025                                                
       
Agenda Item:  Student Travel Requests 
 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
According to Board Policy Article VIII, Section 19 Field Trips and Other District Sponsored Trips “Board 
approval is required for field trips and other District-sponsored trips which are planned to take students 
out of the United States or overnight.” 
 
Current Status: 
The following student travel requests have been received for approval.  These student travel trips are 
educational trips, aligned to curriculum, chaperoned and organized by School Personnel: 
 

1. Student travel is requested for 4 L’Anse Creuse High School students to travel to Chula Vista, California on 
June 27, 2025 and return on June 30, 2025.  Students will attend the Jostens Renaissance Global 
Conference on leadership.  The trip is requested by Alysia Samborsky.  There will be 5 staff; A. Samborsky; 
B. Schroll-Reidel; and G. Ashburn; D. MacLeod; and R. Martin to chaperone the trip. 

2. Student travel is requested for 25 L’Anse Creuse Special Education students to travel to Mount Pleasant, 
Michigan on May 29, 2025 and return on May 31, 2025.  Students will attend the Special Olympics 
Summer games and compete in various summer sports.  The trip is requested by B. Nielubowicz.  There 
will be 2 staff; B. Nielubowicz and J. Pasque and 4 parents to chaperone the trip. 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments): 
Administration is recommending approval for the above student travel requests. 

 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


24400 F.V. PANKOW BOULEVARD, CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI 48036-1305 586-783-6550 586-783-6556 FAX  WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status in its programs, services, 
activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools Administration, 24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, 
Clinton Township, MI 48036, (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

 

 
 

 
 

 

LARRY F. BRENDER SUPPORT SERVICES CENTER 

 
Keith Howell 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 

TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT 

 

Brandon Streng 
DIRECTOR FOR TECHNOLOGY 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
Initiator:  Brandon Streng    
  
Board Meeting:  April 28, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:   Technology Firewall Support Recommendation 
 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
 

Background: 
The district’s firewall support agreement is due for renewal in July 2025. This agreement provides the district 
with hardware and software support for both of our firewalls as well as licensing for the anti-virus and 
Internet filtering components. A portion of our annual renewal cost is eligible for the Universal Service Fund 
(USF) E-Rate program. We initiated a cost saving competitive bid process by releasing a 2025-2026 USF E-
Rate Request for Proposal (RFP) for eligible firewall support and licensing. 
  

Current Status: 
The district received two compliant bids for the firewall support renewal. After evaluating both bids it was 
determined that Delta Network Services’ bid met all the requirements and was the lowest bid for a total of 
$61,231.50, which only $17,757.14 is E-Rate eligible. The E-Rate reimbursement for L’Anse Creuse is calculated as 
80% of the E-Rate eligible amount. The expected E-Rate reimbursement for the renewal would be $14,205.71 
with the district paying the remaining portion of $47,025.79 from the Technology Department’s General Fund 
budget. 

 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 

Administration recommends the Board motion to award the firewall support renewal to Delta Network 

Services in the amount of $61,231.50 as presented. 

 

G.1. 
 



Bid Opening Date:

Service Description:

Factor

%Weight* Rating** Weight*** Rating** Weight*** Rating** Weight*** Rating** Weight*** Rating** Weight***

30 5 30.00 4 24.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Service Transition Factors 20 5 20.00 4 16.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

10 5 10.00 5 10.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5 5 5.00 5 5.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5 5 5.00 5 5.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

10 5 10.00 5 10.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5 5 5.00 5 5.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5 5 5.00 5 5.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

10 5 10.00 5 10.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

100 **** 100 90 0 0 0

Title:

***Service Provider Weight=(Factor %Weight) x (Service Provider Rating) x (.2) 
****Total Factor %Weight must=100%

Comments:

**Service Provider Rating: 1=Poor 2=Fair 3=Good 4=Better 5=Best

Director for Technology

Approved by:

Date:

With minimal implementation concerns, this decision came 
down to the cost and Delta Networks was selected for 
providing the lowest bid.

*Factor %Weight=Weight of each factor where Price is the heaviest weight

Evaluation  Factors
Delta Networks

Selected Service Provider: Delta Networks

Brandon Streng

3/10/2025

Adherence to Specifications

Total Ratings:

Other (specify)

Management Capabilities

Financial Stability

Other (specify)

Personnel Qualifications

BID EVALUATION WORKSHEET
FY25: 2025-2026

Service Provider Service Provider

3/4/2025

Service Provider 

People Driven Tech

Service Provider Service Provider 

Understands Needs

Past Performance

E-rate Eligible Costs*

Network Electronics - Firewall UTP

District Name:  L'Anse Creuse Public Schools

Prior Experience

Triple R Consultants Page 1 of 1



Appendix C
Triple R Consultants

Bill of Materials

Date:  3/1/2025

Base Bid 8.4.3 Firewall Renewal
Part Number Manufacturer Model Item Description Quantity Eligible Cost Quantity-Labor Labor Cost Total Cost

FC-10-03007-950-02-12 Fortinet FC-10-03007-950-02-12

Unified Threat Protection (UTP) Support on 
existing FG-3000D appliances, 24x7 NBD 
FortiCare and FortiGuard, serial #'s 
FGT3KD3Z16800829 and FGT3KD3Z16800799.  
Term is 1YR from 7/7/25 to 7/7/26

2 30,615.75$   61,231.50$                     

-$                                
-$                                
-$                                
-$                                
-$                                

-$                                
-$                                

Grand Totals: 2 30,615.75$    0 -$             61,231.50$                  

Appendix C - Bill of Materials:  Section 8.4.3 Firewall Renewal

Service Provider Name: Delta Network Services

District Name:  L'Anse Creuse Public Schools



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

SUPPORT SERVICES 
 

Don Gratton 
                 DIRECTOR FOR OPERATIONS 

 

Randy T. Baker 
SUPERVISOR FOR  

MAINTENANCE & CUSTODIAL SERVICES  
 

Kim Bryer and Holly Vitale 
SUPERVISORs FOR TRANSPORTATION 

24400 F.V. PANKOW BOULEVARD CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1305 586-783-6550 586-783-6556 FAX WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

LARRY F. BRENDER SUPPORT SERVICES CENTER 

 
 

 

  
 
 

Initiator:  Don Gratton 
 
Board Meeting: April 28, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Abatement Associated with Yacks Flooring Project 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 

Background: 

As part of the 2024 Bond, flooring replacement at Yacks Elementary Schools was identified as a 
critical need. As we were planning the work scope for the cafeteria and stage area (SACC area), 
it was determined that the mastic (glue) that was used to adhere the current flooring tiles 
contains asbestos. This will require abatement services to remove the existing tiles. 
 
Current Status: 

Bids were solicited for the asbestos abatement work. Six companies submitted bids, with 
Certified Abatement providing the lowest bid for $37,000.00. An alternate was also provided to 
abate storage closets while onsite for $3000.00. A post bid interview was held and it was 
determined Certified Abatement had a complete bid and are able to satisfactorily complete the 
work at Yacks. This project will be funded using bond dollars. 
 
As part of the abatement work, air samples and subsequent clearances need to be performed. 
NOVA Environmental is the company of record the district uses for all of our asbestos related 
testing. NOVA has submitted a proposal to perform the aforementioned tests at Yacks 
Elementary School during the abatement process for $10,175.00 (see attached proposal). This 
project will be funded using bond dollars. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration is seeking the Board to award the flooring abatement work at Yacks Elementary 
School to Certified Abatement with a total bid cost of $40,000.00 including the alternate and to 
award testing services required for the abatement work at Yacks Elementary School to NOVA 
Environmental with a bid cost of $10,175.00. 

H.1. 



 
 
April 8, 2025 

 

Mr. Don Gratton 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd. 

Clinton Twp., MI 48036-1305 
 

RE: Proposal #P25050 – Environmental Services for L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

Dear Don: 

 

The intent of this correspondence is to offer Nova Environmental, Inc.'s services to conduct Project Management 

and Air Monitoring for the Summer 2025 asbestos abatement project at Yacks Elementary School, for L’Anse 

Creuse Public Schools. Based on known scope of work. The estimated costs are as follows: 

 

 

 

 

Projected 

Consultant 

Time 

(Hours) 

Cost 

per 

Hour 

Project 

Management 

Cost 

PCM TEM  

Total  

Cost 

Estimate 

Number 

of 

Samples 

Cost 

per 

Sample 

PCM 

Analysis 

Cost 

Number 

of 

Samples 

Cost 

per 

Sample 

TEM 

Analysis 

Cost 

120 $65.00 $7,800.00 150 $10.00 $1,500.00 5 $175.00 $875.00 $10,175.00 

 

 

If less time or samples are needed, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools will realize the cost savings. If any additional 

time or samples are required, they will be billed at the above rates. 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to offer these services to you.  If you have any questions regarding this proposal or if 

you wish to discuss any aspect of Nova's services, please contact us at (734) 930-0995. 

 

If you have any questions or if I can be of further service, please contact me. 

 

Thank you, 

NOVA ENVIRONMENTAL, INC. 

 

 
Russell Love 

Senior Environmental Consultant 
 

Donald J. Yacks Elementary School:



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

I.1. 
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA 
 
Board Meeting: April 28, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  2024 Bond Program Project Series Transfers 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
The $188.7 Million bond that was approved by voters on November 5, 2024, was a bond 
proposal that addressed critical needs projects.  These bonds were planned to be sold in two 
series for a financial benefit to achieve interest savings to our taxpayers, but not a requirement 
for approval by the state. 
 
In an effort to address the critical needs of this district as timely as possible and achieve 
economies of scale, administration has determined that the original intent of the bond program 
to accomplish projects by building needed to be thoroughly reviewed and re-evaluated.  
 

Current Status: 
The project transfers between the two series are relatively neutral, but necessary, as the 
attached schedule indicates for the following reasons: 
 

• Safety Projects needed more timely 

• Align projects  

• Achieve General Fund savings with less repairs 

• Accomplish projects timely, while still maintaining quality 
 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the 2024 Bond Program Project Series 
Transfers as presented 
. 
 

KK/jh 

 



ITEM MOVED TO 

SERIES 1

MOVED TO 

SERIES 2

NOTES

Carkenord Remodeling* $449,318

Move all interior remodeling to Series 1.  In 2026, this is one of four buildings (*) combined together 

to benefit from economies of scale.  Some work activities that are minimal at one building are 

greater at another; therefore, combining the schools enhances the overall quantity to benefit 

purchasing materials in bulk.

Graham Remodeling $2,642,369

Remodeling to occur in 2027 after Series 2 bonds sell.  Moving items between the two Series has no 

impact on the scheduled construction.  Move to Series 2 accomodates other projects that need to 

occur prior to Series 2 being sold.

Higgins Remodeling* $136,134

Move all interior remodeling to Series 1.  In 2026, this is one of four buildings (*) combined together 

to benefit from economies of scale.  Some work activities that are minimal at one building are 

greater at another; therefore, combining the schools enhances the overall quantity to benefit 

purchasing materials in bulk.

MSC Remodeling* $61,184

Move all interior remodeling to Series 1.  In 2026, this is one of four buildings (*) combined together 

to benefit from economies of scale.  Some work activities that are minimal at one building are 

greater at another; therefore, combining the schools enhances the overall quantity to benefit 

purchasing materials in bulk.  Emerging programs space remains in Series 2 for a district-wide 

project for these spaces at middle schools and high schools.

MSE Remodeling* $272,268

Move all interior remodeling to Series 1.  In 2026, this is one of four buildings (*) combined together 

to benefit from economies of scale.  Some work activities that are minimal at one building are 

greater at another; therefore, combining the schools enhances the overall quantity to benefit 

purchasing materials in bulk.  Emerging programs space remains in Series 2 for a district-wide 

project for these spaces at middle schools and high schools.

LCHS Remodeling $337,599

Building interior and exterior renovations are all scheduled for 2027 after Series 2 is sold.  Moving 

items between the two Series has no impact on scheduled construction.  Moved fire alarm and 

some mech to Series 1 and moved metal panels to Series 2 in the event these 

mechanical/electrical systems need replacement prior to 2027.  Pool mechanical and plumbing 

work is paired with LCHSN for 2026 work and economies of scale benefits.

LCHSN Remodeling $3,326,341

Building interior and exterior renovations are all scheduled for 2027 after Series 2 is sold.  Moving 

items between the two Series has no impact on scheduled construction. Moved temp controls and 

most mechanical/plumbing to Series 1 in the event that these systems need replacement prior to 

2027.  Pool mechanical and plumbing work is paired with LCHS for 2026 and economies of scale 

benefits.

Burdi Remodeling $320,303

Remodeling to occur in 2028 after Series 2 bonds sell.  Burdi had some renovations in 2023 and can 

wait till 2028 for remainder of work.  Had a new early childhood center been built, the original intent 

was to remodel Burdi and Graham ECC at the same time in Series 1.

Lobbestael, Tenniswood, & Yacks 

Vinyl Floors
$476,621

Move vinyl floors forward for Gyms and Cafeterias for economies of scale that allowed for 

alternates for additional flooring replacement to be within the flooring replacement budget.

District-Wide 

Exterior Window Upgrades
$406,489

Secured Entrance Enhancements.  Original sequencing of work had this activity to be addressed 

building-by-building as they are remodeled, but to accelerate this safety feature the line item was 

moved into Series 1 for all buildings.  Project will be bid as a combined project to also benefit from 

economies of scale.

LCHSN Pool Filtration $472,262

Equipment to be replaced in 2026.   System is failing quicker than the scheduled 2027 building-wide 

renovation project and needs to be pulled forward to mitigate repair costs that impact the General 

Fund.  Pairing it with LCHS pool filtration system allowed for economies of scale for better bid 

results.

Atwood, MSN, and MSS Roofs $4,757,443
Move up to summer of 2026.  District-wide roofing replacement project will benefit from economies 

of scale and provide new roofs ahead of the interior remodeling projects.

District-Wide 

Interior Doors & Hardware
$735,734

Ancillary spaces to receive new locks since the classrooms completed prior to bond. Original 

sequencing of work had this activity to be addressed building-by-building as they are remodeled, 

but to accelerate this safety feature the line item was moved into Series 1 for all buildings.  Project 

will be bid as a combined project to also benefit from economies of scale.

District-Wide

Tempearture Controls

 Main Controller 

$375,000

15 buildings added for district wide replacement in 2025.  The main controllers are failing quicker 

than would allow for them to be replaced with all the other temperature controls associated with 

the new mechanical equipment.  Remaining temperature controls work will remain with 

mechanical equipment replacement.  The main controllers will be replaced in a combined package 

to benefit from economies of scale.

L'Anse Creuse Public Schools

2024 Bond Program

Series Proposed Transfers

Series Proposed Transfers 4/11/2025



Pankow Fire Alarm 

Upgrade in JAPAC
$22,944 At the moment the equipment is functional, but it was moved forward to Series 1.

District-Wide

Architectural Specialties
$302,859

Window shades/blinds, interior signage, etc.  Other than the four buildings in 2026, the other 

buildings renovations occur after Series 2 is sold and this line item at each school can be moved 

without schedule impacts.  It will also provide an opportunity to break out this work into a separate 

bid package should a district-wide replacement project be desired for both standardization and 

economies of scale.

District-Wide

High priority sidewalk replacement
$152,348

District-wide 1st phase replacement of damaged sidewalks that are not adjacent to asphalt 

pavement to be replaced.  Those concrete walkways will be replaced when the pavement adjacent 

to them is replaced for proper sequencing of replacement.

Parking Lot, Sidewalks, 

and Paved Play Surfaces
$5,249,128

Atwood, Carkenord, Higgins, South River, Tenniswood, and Burdi parking lots are scheduled for 

replacement work after the Series 2 bonds sale, so moving the items to Series 2 has no impact on 

scheduled replacement.  Move to the Series 2 was to accommodate needs of other work items 

needing to be in Series 1 such as Graham and Middle Central paving along with Pankow already in 

Series 1.

District-Wide 

Tech Infrastructure
$340,758

This is a portion of cabling, racks, and support infrastructure that support new IT systems 

scheduled to occur after Series 2 bonds are sold. The original bond budgets in some instances split 

IT items between series 1 and 2.  Infrastructure projects are typically completed as district-wide 

systems for both practical and efficiency reasons.  Minor adjustments were made between Series 1 

and 2 to align all buildings within each project to the same series. 

District-Wide 

Safety & Security
$4,639,540

Emergency alert and PA systems.  Original intent was to install systems after physical remodeling is 

completed to avoid rework.  Since only Higgins is having a building-wide ceiling replacement 

scheduled in 2026, this work could be moved forward to Series 1 without having a sequencing 

problem while also accelerating safety system installation.

AV Systems $5,091,500

Audiovisual systems including classroom AV upgrades, large space AV systems, stadium 

upgrades, and other AV systems were determined to be a high priority based on the age of the 

existing equipment as well as the benefits to the teaching and learning environment.  Due to the size 

of the district and a preference to minimize disruptions to the buildings, these projects have been 

reallocated between Series 1 and 2.  Series 1 will consist of elementary schools and Series 2 will 

consist of the middles chools, high schools, and administrative buildings.

Computers & Mobile Devices $3,899,867

Desktops and elementary School mobile device refresh. The original bond aligned approximately 

80% of computer and mobile devices to be implemented during Series 1.  The team adjusted the 

purchase of devices to align with the age of the devices and the interal replacement schedule.  Non-

instructional equipment projects were determined to be a lower priority than other technology 

initiative items and allow for additional time to tailor equipment to the building requirements. 

Purchase Furniture $553,473
Carkenord, Higgins, MSC, and MSE have been moved forward to compliment the interior 

renovations occurring in 2026.

HS & HSN band 

equipment and trailers
$665,823

Music program instruments and equipment funds have been moved forward to address immediate 

needs and provide each building flexibility to meet each programs needs on an as-needed basis due 

to the varying ages of individual instruments and equipment.

Totals $17,840,521 $17,846,785 $6,264

Series Proposed Transfers 4/11/2025


	4.28.25 Regular Meeting Agenda
	F.1. Budget Report
	F.2. Overtime Report
	F.3. Payment Registers
	F.4. Purchases Bond
	F.5. Purchases
	F.6. Quarterly Budget
	F.7. Summary of Investments
	F.8. Summary of Wire Transfers
	F.9. Accounts Payable Check Register Approval Reminder
	F.10. Employment Recommendations - April 28, 2025 - Combined
	F.10. 3-Box Employment Recommendation - 04-28-2025
	F.10. Employment Recommendations - April 28, 2025
	David, Jordan - LOA
	Knill, Rebecca - LOA
	Kociemba, Dianna - LOA
	Parmentier, Kathy - LOA

	F.11. Student Travel 4.28.25
	G.1. 2025.04.28 Technology Firewall Support Combined
	G.1. 2025.04.28 Technology Firewall Support Recommendation
	G.1. 2025.04.28 Technology Firewall Support Bid Evaluation
	G.1. 2025.04.28 Technology Firewall Support Quote

	H.1. Yacks Flooring Abatement and NOVA Testing Combined
	H.1. Yacks Flooring Abatement and NOVA Testing 3 box
	Nova Cost Estimate

	I.1. 2024 Bond Program Project Series Transfers



